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AUDITOR’S TRANSMITTAL 

The Honorable Roy Cooper, Governor 
The General Assembly of North Carolina 
The State Board of Education 
Mark R. Johnson, State Superintendent 
Department of Public Instruction 

We have completed a financial statement audit of the North Carolina Department of Public 
Instruction for the year ended June 30, 2017, and our audit results are included in this report. 
You will note from the independent auditor’s report that we determined that the financial 
statements are presented fairly in all material respects. 

The results of our tests disclosed no deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting 
that we consider to be material weaknesses in relation to our audit scope or any instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

North Carolina General Statutes require the State Auditor to make audit reports available to 
the public. Copies of audit reports issued by the Office of the State Auditor may be obtained 
through one of the options listed in the back of this report. 

 
Beth A. Wood, CPA 
State Auditor 



 

 

AN OVERVIEW OF HOW TO USE THIS REPORT 

This report provides audited financial information on the North Carolina Department of Public 
Instruction (Department) and is designed to provide the information at a summarized level in 
the beginning, with more details of the information further into the report. This report is made 
up of various components as listed in the Table of Contents. 

The Department reports financial activities in two major funds: governmental and proprietary. 
The governmental fund is used to report most of the activity of the Department. The 
proprietary fund is used to report the activity of the Public School Insurance Fund. 

The financial information in the report is presented at a summarized, departmental level 
initially. Where some numbers need further explanation, additional detail is provided in 
schedules or “Notes to the Financial Statements”. 

The schedules/Notes will be referenced next to the line item caption. 

Required Information: (Information required to be reported by state departments per 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board and Government Auditing Standards). 

The Independent Auditor’s Report presents the auditor’s opinion on the financial 
statements, which is that the financial statements, as presented, are materially correct. 

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis presents a discussion of the reasons for 
significant financial changes between years that is prepared by the Department and has not 
been audited. 

“A” Exhibits present the Balance Sheet (as of June 30, 2017 and 2016) and the Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (for fiscal years ended  
June 30, 2017 and 2016) for the Department’s governmental fund as a whole 
(represented by the general fund). 

“B” Exhibits present the Statement of Net Position (as of June 30, 2017 and 2016), the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (for fiscal years ended  
June 30, 2017 and 2016), and the Statement of Cash Flows (for the fiscal years ended  
June 30, 2017 and 2016) for the Department’s proprietary fund as a whole (represented 
by the Public School Insurance Fund). 

Notes to the Financial Statements are designed to give the reader additional information 
concerning the Department and further support the financial statements. 

“C” Schedules present a budget and actual comparison for the General Fund (for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2017) of the Department’s general fund as a whole, a schedule of  
ten-year claims development information for the public school insurance fund, and schedules 
of net pension liability and contributions.  



 

 

AN OVERVIEW OF HOW TO USE THIS REPORT 

Supplementary Information: (This information is tabbed by topic in the report) 

“D” Schedules present details of various revenues and/or expenditures of the governmental 
fund as follows: 

• D-1 - Revenues by Source (Agrees to total revenues on Exhibit A-2) 

• D-2 - Expenditures by Purpose (Agrees to total expenditures on Exhibit A-2 which are 
presented by natural classification) 

• D-3 - Schedule of Grants, State, and Federal Aid Paid to Schools (Agrees to Exhibit A-2) 

• D-4 - Schedule of Grants and Aid Paid to School Districts (Alphabetically by County) 

• D-5 - Schedule of Grants and Aid Paid to School Districts (Amount - Sorted Largest to 
Smallest) 

• D-6 - Schedule of Grants and Aid Paid to Charter Schools (Alphabetically by County) 

• D-7 - Schedule of Grants and Aid Paid to Charter Schools (Amount - Sorted Largest to 
Smallest) 

Required Information: 

The Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control and Compliance – this report is not an 
opinion on internal control or compliance but rather a report on the matters related to internal 
control and compliance that were noted as a part of the audit of the financial statements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

The State Board of Education 
and Management of the North Carolina Department of Public Instruction 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each major fund of the North 
Carolina Department of Public Instruction (Department) as of and for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the Department’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Department’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Department’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 



 

2 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 
all material respects, the respective financial position of the each major fund of the North 
Carolina Department of Public Instruction, as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes 
in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the North Carolina Department of Public 
Instruction are intended to present the financial position, changes in financial position and, 
where applicable, cash flows of only that portion of each major fund that is attributable to the 
transactions of the North Carolina Department of Public Instruction. They do not purport to, 
and do not, present fairly the financial position of the State of North Carolina as of  
June 30, 2017, the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters  

Prior Period Information 

We have previously audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental and 
proprietary funds of the Department as of June 30, 2016 and the respective changes in 
financial position for the year then ended, and expressed an unmodified audit opinion on 
those audited financial statements in our report dated March 27, 2017. The prior year 
supplementary schedules were derived from and related to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The supplementary schedules were 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements of 
the prior year and accordingly, we expressed an opinion in relation to the basic financial 
statement of the governmental funds as a whole for the year ended June 30, 2016. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and other required supplementary information, as 
listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the Department. The supplementary 
schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of 
the basic financial statements. 

The accompanying supplementary schedules are the responsibility of management and were 
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied by us in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, based on our 
audit, the procedures performed as described previously, the supplemental schedules are 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report  
April 9, 2018 on our consideration of the Department’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit preformed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Department’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

 
Beth A. Wood, CPA 
State Auditor 

Raleigh, North Carolina 

April 9, 2018 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of the North Carolina Department of 
Public Instruction’s (Department) financial report is provided as an overview of the financial 
performance of the governmental fund and proprietary fund for the fiscal years ended  
June 30, 2017 and 2016. This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the 
financial statements and related notes to the financial statements which follow this section. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The Department’s financial statements are comprised of the governmental fund (General 
Fund) and the proprietary fund (Public School Insurance Fund). The General Fund’s basic 
financial statements consist of the Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balance whereas the Public School Insurance Fund’s basic financial 
statements consist of the Statement of Net Position; Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position; and the Statement of Cash Flows. 

General Fund: 

• The Balance Sheet presents the governmental fund’s assets, deferred outflows, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows that are considered relevant to an assessment of 
near-term liquidity. The difference between assets (plus deferred outflows) and 
liabilities (plus deferred inflows) is reported as fund balance. 

• The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance reports 
the resource flow (revenues and expenditures) of the governmental fund. 

Public School Insurance Fund: 

• The Statement of Net Position shows the financial position of the proprietary fund 
and includes all of the fund’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, 
and net position. The Statement of Net Position also provides the basis for 
evaluating the liquidity and financial flexibility of the fund. 

• The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position displays 
revenue and expense activities of the proprietary fund. The net effect of revenues 
and expenses rolls into net position which reflects the current year activities. 

• The Statement of Cash Flows is prepared using the direct method. This statement 
shows the net changes in cash resulting from operating and investing activities. 

Notes to the financial statements are designed to give the reader additional information 
concerning the Department and further supports the statements noted above. 

Required Supplementary Information (RSI) follows the basic financial statements and notes 
to the financial statements. The RSI is mandated by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) and includes General Fund budgetary comparison schedules reconciling the 
statutory to the generally accepted accounting principles fund balances at fiscal year-end 
and Public School Insurance Fund trend information related to funding progress and 
contributions. 

Other Supplementary Information includes schedule of revenues by source; schedule of 
expenditures by purpose; schedule of grants, state, and federal aid paid to schools; 
schedules of grants and aid paid to school districts; and schedules of grants and aid paid to 
charter schools.   
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Governmental Fund – General Fund 

Condensed Balance Sheets 

The following condensed balance sheets show the governmental fund’s financial position at  
June 30, 2017 and 2016. 

Assets $ 282,995,857 $ 253,639,957 $ 29,355,900

Deferred Outflows of Resources 0 0 0

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows $ 282,995,857 $ 253,639,957 $ 29,355,900

Liabilities $ 276,301,404 $ 265,678,133 $ 10,623,271

Deferred Inflows of Resources 0 0 0

Fund Balance
Nonspendable 2,206,449 1,836,434 370,015
Restricted 2,544,527 1,842,382 702,145
Committed 240,686,201 212,176,430 28,509,771
Unassigned (238,742,724) (227,893,422) (10,849,302)

Total Fund Balance (Deficit) 6,694,453 (12,038,176) 18,732,629

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balance $ 282,995,857 $ 253,639,957 $ 29,355,900

Change20162017

 

Total assets increased $29.4 million compared to prior year mainly due to increases in cash 
and cash equivalents of $29.6 million. The increase in cash and cash equivalents was driven 
by increases in licensure certification and registration fees, investment earnings, E Rate 
telecommunication, internet access program fees, and miscellaneous sources. 

Total liabilities increased by $10.6 million during the year due to a $19.3 million increase in 
intergovernmental payables related to paying more teachers over a 12-month period instead 
of the 10-month school year. This is offset by a $4.1 million decrease in accounts payable 
and a $4.5 million decrease in unearned revenue. The accounts payable decrease is related 
to fluctuation in the timing of payments. The unearned revenue drop is related to federal 
contract and grant expenditures exceeding federal drawdowns. This situation is the result of 
a timing difference between when funds are spent and requested at year-end. 

Overall fund balance increased by $18.7 million primarily due to a $277.4 million increase in 
state appropriations, plus an increase of $669 thousand from the sale of capital assets. The 
increase in state appropriations was directed by the state legislature to cover additional 
educational commitments of the Department. The increases are offset by a $263.9 million 
difference between revenue exceeding expenditures compared to the prior year.  
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

The following condensed statements show the governmental fund’s resource flows at  
June 30, 2017 and 2016. 

Revenues
Federal Funds $ 1,502,105,658 $ 1,521,176,110 $ (19,070,452)
Revenues from Other State Agencies 755,402,847 638,214,202 117,188,645
Other Revenues 47,349,380 39,735,448 7,613,932

Total Revenues 2,304,857,885 2,199,125,760 105,732,125

Expenditures
Grants, State and Federal Aid 10,528,127,137 10,172,393,913 355,733,224
Contracted Services 98,753,521 104,250,046 (5,496,525)
Personal Services 142,096,384 133,418,813 8,677,571
Supplies and Materials 4,121,179 4,105,663 15,516
Purchases for Resale 93,913 1,206,427 (1,112,514)
Travel 3,911,637 4,063,884 (152,247)
Communication 746,794 731,799 14,995
Utilities 1,159,434 1,146,377 13,057
Data Processing Services 22,795,346 23,333,800 (538,454)
Claims and Benefits 2,031,667 3,866,216 (1,834,549)
Other Services 7,132,871 2,808,684 4,324,187
Other Fixed Charges 7,572,510 11,003,996 (3,431,486)
Expenditures to Other State Agencies 13,521,001 16,105,341 (2,584,340)
Capital Outlay 69,959,844 55,635,912 14,323,932
Insurance 2,519,363 2,447,385 71,978
Other Expenditures 3,418,237 1,762,517 1,655,720

Total Expenditures 10,907,960,838 10,538,280,773 369,680,065

Excess Expenditures over Revenues (8,603,102,953) (8,339,155,013) (263,947,940)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
State Appropriations 8,624,794,672 8,347,365,885 277,428,787
Sale of Capital Assets 2,554,415 1,885,282 669,133
Insurance Recoveries 244,442 180,055 64,387
Transfer to State Reserve Fund (79,652,441) (72,151,969) (7,500,472)
Transfer from State Reserve Fund 73,894,494 73,894,494

Total Other Financing Sources 8,621,835,582 8,277,279,253 344,556,329

Increase/(Decrease) in Fund Balance 18,732,629 (61,875,760) 80,608,389

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year (12,038,176) 49,837,584 (61,875,760)

Fund Balance Increase/(Decrease) - End of Year $ 6,694,453 $ (12,038,176) $ 18,732,629

2017 2016 Change

 

Total revenues increased by $105.7 million compared to prior year due to increases in 
revenues from other state agencies. The Civil Penalty Fund increased by $51.9 million and the 
Lottery Fund increased by $62.0 million. The two amounts plus other revenues of $7.6 million 
account for the total of $121.5 million. The majority of the funds were transferred from the 
Office of State Budget and Management as directed by the Legislature. 

Federal funding decreased by $19.1 million compared to prior year due to reduced funding in 
federal grants. The leading cause of this decrease is due to the Race to the Top Grant ending, 
dropping federal funds $24.9 million. The variance between the Race to the Top Grant 
discontinuing and the overall decrease in the federal funds is due to normal fluctuation 
between the remaining grants. 



 

7 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Total expenditures increased by $369.7 million as compared to prior year. Grants, State and 
Federal Aid to local schools accounted for $355.7 million of the increase to overall 
expenditures. Salary increases granted to school personnel was responsible for the majority 
of this increase in expenditures. These funds are approved by the state legislature to support 
K-12 instructional education programs. 

Other financing sources increased by $344.6 million primarily due to an increase in state 
appropriations by $277.4 million. Transfers from state reserve fund increased by $73.9 million 
due to the transfer-in of prior years’ cash carry forward into DPI’s accounting records. 

Budget Variations 

Data for the budget variances is presented in Schedule C-1: Schedule of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis –  
Non-GAAP) of this report. 

Variances – Original and Final Budget: 

The final budget of revenues and expenditures decreased by $1.7 billion and $1.4 billion, 
respectively. The decrease is mainly due to federal funding and related expenditures. 
Generally, the variances between original and final budget are attributable to the timing and 
length of the budget preparation process and the budgeting of federal funds for the fiscal 
year. Federal funds are budgeted in total for the grant to start the year and reduced to reflect 
actual at year end. While the original and final budget show a wide variance in the federal 
funds from original to final, the final budget and actual numbers are comparable to the 
numbers reported last year. Also, the original budget for fiscal year 2017 was prepared 
approximately 18 months prior to the final budget. The final budget reflects all budget 
revisions made throughout the fiscal year to adjust for known facts as well as supplemental 
adjustments approved by the General Assembly. Consequently, when the original budget is 
compared to the final budget, it would be expected that significant variances can occur. 

Variances – Final Budget and Actual Results: 

Actual total revenues were $424.4 million less than budgeted revenue amounts. Likewise, 
actual total expenditures were $873.1 million less than budgeted expenditures. Budgeted 
revenues and expenditures were unrealized mostly due to a $425.3 million decrease in 
federal funds received. Variances occur between the budget and actual federal funds 
because actual federal fund receipts are reflective of the actual expenditures. Therefore, if 
qualifying federal costs are not incurred, the actual receipt of federal funds could be 
significantly less than the budget. 

Other factors leading to unrealized budgeted expenditures include: less contracted services 
needed for the public school kindergarten assessment testing, vacant personnel positions, 
and reduced capital outlay for textbooks and school buses.  
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Proprietary Fund – Public School Insurance Fund 

Condensed Statements of Net Position 

The following condensed statements of net position show the proprietary fund’s financial 
position at June 30, 2017 and 2016. 

Assets
Current Assets $ 113,165,805 $ 114,263,570 $ (1,097,765)

Deferred Outflows of Resources 160,479 44,322 116,157

Liabilities
Current Liabilities 16,748,305 12,544,528 4,203,777
Noncurrent Liabilities 328,993 182,904 146,089

Total Liabilities 17,077,298 12,727,432 4,349,866

Deferred Inflows of Resources 16,017 26,450 (10,433)

Net Position
Unrestricted $ 96,232,969 $ 101,554,010 $ (5,321,041)

Change20162017

 

Total assets were $113.2 million at June 30, 2017, a decrease of $1.1 million compared to 
prior year. This decrease is mainly due to a drop of $2.1 million in premiums receivable. The 
reduction is due to premiums collected earlier, resulting in less outstanding balances at  
year-end. The $2.1 million decrease in premiums was offset by a $1.2 million increase in 
cash due to increase in premium collections, which was offset by an increase in claims paid. 

Total liabilities increased by $4.2 million at June 30, 2017. The increase was mainly from a 
claims payable increase of $6.2 million due to Hurricane Matthew damages. However, this 
increase was offset by a decrease of $1.9 million in unearned revenues from the prior year. 
This decrease in unearned revenue is due to less prepaid policies from FY2016 to FY2017. 

Net position decreased $5.3 million from the prior year primarily as the result of a  
$13.2 million increase in claims expense due to damages caused by Hurricane Matthew 
which resulted in a $5.5 million operating loss. For further information on the changes, see 
the following statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.  
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

While the condensed statements of net position show the financial position of the proprietary 
fund, the following condensed statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
position provides answers to the nature and source of changes in net position for the years 
ended June 30, 2017 and 2016: 

2017 2016

Operating Revenues
Insurance Premiums $ 12,317,404 $ 12,640,351 $ (322,947)

Operating Expenses
Personal Services 598,304        537,450        60,854
Contracted Personal Services 96                 712               (616)
Supplies and Materials 1,343            2,141            (798)
Capital Outlay 961               (961)
Travel 51,901          51,784          117
Communication 1,773            2,145            (372)
Claims 13,794,984   606,455        13,188,529
Insurance 3,385,958     3,665,274     (279,316)
Other 5,484            3,887            1,597

Total Operating Expenses 17,839,843 4,870,809 12,969,034

Operating Income (Loss) (5,522,439) 7,769,542 (13,291,981)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Earnings 201,399 6,467,744 (6,266,345)

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position (5,321,040) 14,237,286 (19,558,326)

Net Position - Beginning of Year 101,554,009 87,316,724 14,237,285

Net Position - End of Year $ 96,232,969 $ 101,554,010 $ (5,321,041)

Change

 

Operating revenues decreased $322.9 thousand due to lower premiums received and 
earned. Total operating expenses increased $12.9 million compared to prior year primarily 
due to a $13.2 million increase in claims expense for losses incurred during fiscal year 2017. 
The large increase in claims expense occurred due to flood and wind damages from 
Hurricane Matthew. 

The Department experienced investment earnings of $201.4 thousand, a decrease of  
$6.3 million over the prior year due to the change in investments strategy to a Bond Index 
Fund at the Department of State Treasurer. 

Future Outlook 

Following were the changes to the Base Budget for fiscal year 2017-18: 

• Department of Public Instruction (DPI) operating funds were reduced by 6.2%, 
amounting to $3,239,205. The revised net appropriation after the reduction is  
$49.4 million. There will also be an additional reduction of 6.39 positions. 

• Education and Workforce Innovation Commission will be transferred from the Office 
of Governor to DPI with the revised net appropriation of $6.2 million.  
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

• The Department will receive five more pass-through grants in fiscal year 2017-18 
(www.ncgrants.gov), namely Hoke Reading literacy Council $25,000; Harnett 
County Early College $100,000; Richmond Senior High School $200,000; Haywood 
Community Learning Center $250,000; and Life Changing Experience Pilot 
Program $360,000. 

Changes over last few years within the DPI have rendered it with fewer staff and resources 
to provide services and ensure compliance with all applicable requirements. Going forward, 
the department will continue to work diligently and efficiently to meet the expectations in all 
areas of its work. 

http://www.ncgrants.gov/
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As of June 30, 2017 (With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2016) Exhibit A-1

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) $ 256,007,820 $ 226,406,616
Receivables:

Accounts Receivable 81,105 29,933
Intergovernmental Receivables (Note 4) 24,461,554 25,239,970
Interest Receivable 238,929 127,004

Inventories 2,206,449 1,836,434

Total Assets 282,995,857 253,639,957

0 0

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows $ 282,995,857 $ 253,639,957

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $ 8,114,528 $ 12,205,112
Accrued Payroll 291 292
Intergovernmental Payables (Note 6) 261,272,719 242,023,077

Funds Held for Others 63,460
Unearned Revenue 6,913,866 11,386,192

Total Liabilities 276,301,404 265,678,133

0 0

FUND BALANCE (Note 9)
Nonspendable 2,206,449 1,836,434
Restricted 2,544,527 1,842,382
Committed 240,686,201 212,176,430
Unassigned (238,742,724) (227,893,422)

Total Fund Balance Increase (Decrease) 6,694,453 (12,038,176)

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balance Increase/(Decrease) $ 282,995,857 $ 253,639,957

 
The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

20162017

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

North Carolina Department of Public Instruction

ASSETS

Balance Sheet
Governmental Fund - General Fund
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Fund - General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
     (With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2016) Exhibit A-2

Federal Funds $ 1,502,105,658 $ 1,521,176,110
Revenues from Other State Agencies (Note 10) 755,402,847 638,214,202
Contributions, Gifts, and Grants 13,619,690 11,022,099
E Rate Telecommunication/Internet Access Program Funds 15,053,451 11,926,105
Sales and Services 1,556,097 1,811,343
Licensure Certification and Registration Fees 3,733,221 2,968,013
Property and Equipment Rental 1,440,948 1,932,316
Investment Earnings 2,064,769 1,260,060
Student Tuition 526,691 542,685
Miscellaneous Income 9,354,513 8,272,827

Total Revenues (See Schedule D-1) 2,304,857,885 2,199,125,760

Grants, State, and Federal Aid (See Schedule D-3) 10,528,127,137 10,172,393,913
Contracted Services 98,753,521 104,250,046
Personal Services 142,096,384 133,418,813
Supplies and Materials 4,121,179 4,105,663
Purchases for Resale 93,913 1,206,427
Travel 3,911,637 4,063,884
Communication 746,794 731,799
Utilities 1,159,434 1,146,377
Data Processing Services 22,795,346 23,333,800
Claims and Benefits 2,031,667 3,866,216
Other Services 7,132,871 2,808,684
Other Fixed Charges 7,572,510 11,003,996
Expenditures to Other State Agencies (Note 10) 13,521,001 16,105,341
Capital Outlay 69,959,844 55,635,912
Insurance 2,519,363 2,447,385
Other Expenditures 3,418,237 1,762,517

Total Expenditures (See Schedule D-2) 10,907,960,838 10,538,280,773

Excess of Expenditures Over Revenues (8,603,102,953) (8,339,155,013)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
State Appropriations 8,624,794,672 8,347,365,885
Sale of Capital Assets 2,554,415 1,885,285
Insurance Recoveries 244,442 180,052
Transfers to State Reserve Fund (79,652,441) (72,151,969)
Transfers from State Reserve Fund 73,894,494

Total Other Financing Sources 8,621,835,582 8,277,279,253

Net Change in Fund Balance 18,732,629 (61,875,760)

Fund Balance (Deficit) - Beginning of Year (12,038,176) 49,837,584

Fund Balance (Deficit) - End of Year $ 6,694,453 $ (12,038,176)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

North Carolina Department of Public Instruction

2017 2016
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Exhibit B-1

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) $ 20,063,505 $ 18,878,542
Pooled Investments (Note 2) 88,951,827 88,965,964
Receivables:

Premiums Receivable 1,823,965 3,894,349
Interest Receivable 18,133 11,968

Prepaid Reinsurance 2,308,375 2,512,747

Total Assets 113,165,805 114,263,570

Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 160,479 44,322

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 18,351
Intergovernmental Payables (Note 6) 2,469 2,498
Claims Payable (Note 13) 11,961,711 5,794,482
Accrued Payroll 2,013 1,366

Unearned Revenue 4,756,018 6,739,735
Compensated Absences (Note 7) 7,743 6,447

Total Current Liabilities 16,748,305 12,544,528

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences (Note 7) 90,894 82,353
Net Pension Liability (Note 7) 238,099 100,551

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 328,993 182,904

Total Liabilities 17,077,298 12,727,432

Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions 16,017 26,450

NET POSITION 
Unrestricted $ 96,232,969 $ 101,554,010

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

2016

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

North Carolina Department of Public Instruction
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Fund - Public School Insurance Fund
As of June 30, 2017 (With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2016)

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

2017
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Fund - Public School Insurance Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
     (With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2016) Exhibit B-2

REVENUES
Operating Revenues:

Insurance Premiums $ 12,317,404 $ 12,640,351

EXPENSES
Operating Expenses:

Personal Services 598,304 537,450
Contracted Personal Services 96 712
Supplies and Materials 1,343 2,141
Capital Outlay 961
Travel 51,901 51,784
Communication 1,773 2,145
Claims 13,794,984 606,455
Insurance 3,385,958 3,665,274
Other 5,484 3,887

Total Operating Expenses 17,839,843 4,870,809

Operating Income (Loss) (5,522,439) 7,769,542

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Investment Earnings 201,399 6,467,744

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position (5,321,040) 14,237,286

Net Position - Beginning of Year 101,554,009 87,316,724

Net Position - End of Year $ 96,232,969 $ 101,554,010

 
The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

North Carolina Department of Public Instruction

2017 2016
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North Carolina Department of Public Instruction
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund - Public School Insurance Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
     (With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2016) Exhibit B-3

Received from Customers $ 12,404,071 $ 13,397,067
Payments to Employees and Fringe Benefits (576,741) (576,554)
Payments to Suppliers (3,223,983) (3,562,942)
Payments for Claims (7,627,755) (4,988,050)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 975,592 4,269,521

Investment Income 2,738,711 3,223,964
Purchase of Investments and Related Fees (2,529,340) (9,079,704)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 209,371 (5,855,740)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,184,963 (1,586,219)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 18,878,542 20,464,761

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ 20,063,505 $ 18,878,542

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income (Loss) $ (5,522,439) $ 7,769,542
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
 by Operating Activities:

Pension Expense 46,335 10,593
Changes in Assets, Liabilities, and Deferred Outflows of Resources:

Premiums Receivable 2,070,384 (1,477,020)
Prepaid Reinsurance 204,372 178,168
Deferred Outflows for Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date (35,378) (38,918)
Accounts Payable 18,351 (11,709)
Intergovernmental Payable (29) (2,497)
Claims Payable 6,167,229 (4,381,595)
Accrued Payroll 648 (504)
Unearned Revenue (1,983,717) 2,233,736
Compensated Absences 9,837 (10,275)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 975,592 $ 4,269,521

NONCASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Change in Fair Value of Investments $ (2,543,477) $ 3,240,775

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

2017 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Organization - The North Carolina Department of Public Instruction 
(Department) is a part of the State of North Carolina and is not a separate 
legal or reporting entity. The Department is charged with implementing the 
State’s public school laws and the State Board of Education’s policies and 
procedures governing pre-kindergarten through 12th grade public 
education. The Department provides leadership and service to  
the 116 local public school districts, 171 charter schools, and the three 
residential schools for students with hearing and visual impairments. The 
areas of support include curriculum and instruction, accountability, finance, 
teacher and administrator preparation and licensing, professional 
development, and school business support and operations. 

The Department is governed by the State Board of Education which consists 
of the Lieutenant Governor, the State Treasurer, and 11 members appointed 
by the Governor. The elected State Superintendent of Public Instruction 
leads the Department and functions under the policy direction of the Board. 

B. Financial Reporting Entity – The concept underlying the definition of 
the financial reporting entity is that elected officials are accountable to 
their constituents for their actions. As required by accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), the financial 
reporting entity includes both the primary government and all of its 
component units. An organization other than a primary government 
serves as a nucleus for a reporting entity when it issues separate 
financial statements. The Department is a part of the State of North 
Carolina and an integral part of the State’s Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report. 

The accompanying financial statements present all funds belonging to 
the Department. The Department’s accounts and transactions are 
included in the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as part of 
the State’s governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

C. Basis of Presentation - The Department’s records are maintained on a 
cash basis throughout the year, but adjustments are made at the end of 
the fiscal year to convert to GAAP for government entities. The financial 
statements are prepared according to GAAP as follows: 

The accompanying financial statements are presented in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB). GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local 
Governments requires the presentation of both government-wide and 
fund level financial statements. The financial statements presented are 
governmental fund and proprietary fund financial statements of the 
Department. Because the Department is not a separate legal or reporting 
entity, government-wide financial statements are not prepared. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The fund financial statements provide information about the Department's 
funds. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major 
governmental funds and proprietary funds, each displayed in a separate 
exhibit. 

The Department’s financial statements consist of the following major 
funds: 

General Fund – This is the Department’s primary operating fund. It 
accounts for all financial resources of the Department, except those 
required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Public School Insurance Fund – This proprietary fund accounts for the 
activities of the Public School Insurance Fund (the Fund). The purpose of 
the Fund is to manage and operate an insurance fund for public school 
property. The Fund insures the property assets of North Carolina public 
schools and those North Carolina community colleges that elect to 
participate. The Fund is financed by premiums collected from the public 
school districts and community colleges. The Fund currently insures 87 
out of 116 public school districts and 31 out of 58 community colleges. 

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Governmental Fund – Governmental fund financial statements are 
prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus and 
the modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, 
only current assets and liabilities are generally included on the balance 
sheet. The operating statement presents increases (revenues and other 
financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing 
uses) in spendable resources. General capital asset acquisitions are 
reported as expenditures and proceeds of general long-term debt are 
reported as other financing sources. 

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized 
when both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be 
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, 
the Department considers revenues to be available if they are collected 
within 31 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, except for compensated absences, 
obligations for workers’ compensation, and financing agreements, which 
are recognized as expenditures when payment is due. Pension 
contributions to cost-sharing plans are recognized as expenditures in the 
period to which the payment relates, even if payment is not due until the 
subsequent period. 

Since capital asset and long-term liability accounts relating to the 
governmental funds are reported only at the state-wide level, these 
amounts are not included in the Department’s governmental fund 
financial statements. However, those amounts are reported in the Notes 
to the Financial Statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Proprietary Fund – Proprietary fund financial statements are prepared 
using the economic resource measurement focus and the accrual basis 
of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 

Nonexchange transactions, in which the Department receives (or gives) 
value without directly giving (or receiving) equal value in exchange, 
includes investment earnings (or losses). Revenues are recognized, net 
of estimated uncollectible amounts, as soon as all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met, if probable of collection. 

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with GAAP, 
requires management of the Department to make estimates and 
judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows 
of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and the 
disclosures and contingencies at the date of the financial statements and 
revenues and expenditures recognized during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Should actual results 
differ from those estimates, changes will be flown through the financial 
statements during the year of change and will be disclosed, if material. 

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents - This classification includes deposits held 
by the State Treasurer in the Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF). The 
STIF maintained by the State Treasurer has the general characteristics of 
a demand deposit account in that participants may deposit and withdraw 
cash at any time without prior notice or penalty. 

F. Investments – To the extent available, investments are recorded at fair 
value based on quoted market prices in active markets on a trade-date 
basis. Additional information regarding the fair value measurement of 
investments is disclosed in Note 3. Because of the inherent uncertainty in 
the use of estimates, values that are based on estimates may differ from 
the values that would have been used had a ready market existed for the 
investments. The net change in the value of investments is recognized as 
a component of investment income. 

G. Receivables – Receivables consist of amounts that have arisen in the 
ordinary course of business. Receivables are reported at book value with 
no provision for doubtful accounts considered necessary. 

Receivables for the governmental fund also include amounts due from the 
federal government in connection with the reimbursement of allowable 
expenditures for qualified meals under the child nutrition program, and 
local school districts for purchases of instructional materials. 

Receivables for the proprietary fund also include insurance premiums due 
from insured schools and reinsurance due from third party providers. The 
Department purchases reinsurance for claims paid in excess of $10,000,000 
per occurrence (see Note 13 for further information). 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

H. Inventories and Prepaid Items – Inventories, consisting of expendable 
supplies and materials, are valued at cost using the first-in, first-out 
method. Inventories of the governmental fund are recorded as 
expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 

Prepaid reinsurance for the proprietary fund represents the portion of 
reinsurance coverage related to future periods. 

I. Intergovernmental Payables – Intergovernmental payables for the 
governmental fund mainly represent accrued payroll for state-funded 
school teachers and amounts due to the schools in connection with the 
federal child nutrition program for qualified meals. Intergovernmental 
payables for the proprietary fund represent amounts due to other state 
agencies for services provided. 

J. Unearned Revenue – Unearned revenue for the governmental fund 
represents the cumulative excess of cash received from the federal 
government over expenditures paid in connection with reimbursement of 
allowable expenditures made pursuant to contracts and grants. Unearned 
revenue for the proprietary fund represents insurance premiums paid by 
schools for coverage relating to future periods. 

K. Long-Term Liabilities - General long-term liabilities for the governmental 
fund are not recognized in the governmental fund until they become due. 
Consequently, general long-term liabilities not yet due are not reported on 
the face of the governmental fund financial statements. For the proprietary 
fund, long-term liabilities, which include compensated absences and net 
pension liability, are reported as liabilities on the face of the proprietary 
fund financial statements. The noncurrent portion represents amounts that 
will not be paid within the next fiscal year. 

The net pension liability represents the Department’s proportionate share 
of the collective net pension liability reported in the State of North 
Carolina’s 2016 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This liability 
represents the Department’s portion of the collective total pension liability 
less the fiduciary net position of the Teachers’ and State Employees’ 
Retirement System. See Note 11 for further information regarding the 
Department’s policies for recognizing liabilities, expenses, and deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions. 

L. Compensated Absences - Employees of the Department are permitted 
to accumulate earned but unused vacation pay benefits. All vacation pay 
is accrued when incurred in the propriety fund. In the governmental fund, 
a liability for these amounts is reported only as payments come due each 
period upon the occurrence of relevant events such as employee 
resignations and retirements. Consequently, compensated absence 
balances are not reported on the face of the governmental fund financial 
statements. When determining the vacation pay liability due within one 
year, leave is considered taken on a last in, first out (LIFO) basis. The 
Department’s policy provides for a maximum accumulation of unused 
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vacation leave of 30 days which can be carried forward each January 1 
or for which an employee can be paid upon termination of employment. 
Also, any accumulated vacation leave in excess of 30 days at calendar 
year end is converted to sick leave. Under this policy, the accumulated 
vacation leave for each employee at June 30 equals the leave carried 
forward at the previous December 31 plus the leave earned, less the leave 
taken between January 1 and June 30. 

In addition to the vacation leave described above, compensated 
absences include the accumulated unused portion of the special annual 
leave bonuses awarded by the North Carolina General Assembly. The 
bonus leave balance on December 31 is retained by employees and 
transferred into the next calendar year. It is not part of the 30 day 
maximum applicable to regular vacation leave and is not subject to 
conversion to sick leave. 

There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave because the 
Department has no obligation to pay sick leave upon employee termination 
or retirement. However, additional service credit for retirement pension 
benefits is given for accumulated sick leave upon retirement. 

M. Net Position / Fund Balance 

Net Position – Net position for the proprietary fund is classified as 
unrestricted and includes resources derived from insurance premiums 
and investment earnings. Net position also includes consideration of 
deferred outflows and inflows of resources. 

Fund Balance – Fund balance for the governmental fund is reported in 
the following classifications depicting the relative strength of the 
constraints that control how specific amounts can be spent. 

The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that 
cannot be spent because they represent inventories that are not available 
for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. 

Restricted fund balances have constraints placed on the use of resources 
that are either (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, 
or laws or regulations of other governments or (b) imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions. 

Committed fund balances can only be used for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the N.C. General 
Assembly, the State’s highest level of decision-making authority. The 
N.C. General Assembly establishes commitments through the passage of 
legislation that becomes State law. Commitments may be changed or 
lifted only by taking the same formal action that imposed the constraint 
originally. 

Assigned fund balances are constrained by an intent to be used for specific 
purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The Office of State 
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Budget and Management (OSBM) is authorized to assign unexpended 
funds at year-end as a carryforward of budget authority to the subsequent 
fiscal year. The North Carolina Constitution (Article III, Sec. 5(3)) provides 
that the "budget as enacted by the General Assembly shall be administered 
by the Governor." The Governor has delegated the authority to perform 
certain powers and duties of this role as the Director of the Budget to OSBM. 

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General 
Fund. Other governmental funds cannot report positive unassigned fund 
balance but can report negative unassigned fund balance if expenditures 
incurred for specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted or 
committed to those purposes. 

Expenditures are considered to be made from the most restrictive 
resource (i.e., restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned in that 
order) when more than one fund balance classification is available for 
use. 

N. Revenues and Expenditures from/to Other State Agencies – Revenues 
and expenditures from/to other state agencies for the governmental fund 
represent funds that the Department obtains from or transfers to other 
agencies, institutions, or entities within the State of North Carolina. These 
transfers are not considered other financing sources or uses per GAAP, 
nor are they considered inter-fund transfers. These revenues and 
expenditures represent nonexchange transactions and are eliminated at 
the statewide reporting level in the State’s Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report. 

O. Revenues and Expenses – The proprietary fund distinguishes operating 
revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing insurance coverage as the 
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operation. Operating revenues result 
from an exchange transaction, the receipt of insurance premiums in 
exchange for insuring covered property. Operating expenses are all 
expense transactions incurred other than those related to capital and 
noncapital financing or investing activities as defined by GASB Statement 
No. 9 – Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust 
Funds and Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting. 

Non-operating revenues, such as investment earnings, result from non-
exchange transactions. 

P. Claims Expense – The Public School Insurance Fund establishes 
provisions for insured events based on estimates of the ultimate cost of 
claims. Provisions for insured events ordinarily result in an expense. On 
occasion, developments in the provisions for insured events may require 
an adjustment to the previously recorded estimated liability. In any year 
where the amount of these developments results in negative expense, 
those amounts will be reclassified to income as Adjustment to Estimated 
Claims Liability for presentation purposes.  
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NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Unless specifically exempt, the Department is required by North Carolina 
General Statute 147-77 to deposit any funds collected or received that belong 
to the State of North Carolina with the State Treasurer or with a depository 
institution in the name of the State Treasurer. General Statute 147-69.1, 
applicable to the General Fund and General Statute 147-69.2, applicable to 
the Public School Insurance Fund, authorize the State Treasurer to invest all 
deposits in the following: obligations of or fully guaranteed by the United 
States; obligations of certain federal agencies; specified repurchase 
agreements; obligations of the State of North Carolina; certificates of deposit 
and other deposit accounts of specified financial institutions; prime quality 
commercial paper with specified ratings; asset-backed securities with 
specified ratings, specified bills of exchange or time drafts; corporate 
bonds/notes with specified ratings; general obligations of other states; general 
obligations of North Carolina local governments; and obligations of certain 
entities with specified ratings. 

At June 30, 2017, the governmental fund’s Balance Sheet reported cash and 
cash equivalents of $256,007,820. The proprietary fund’s Statement of Net 
Position reported cash and cash equivalents of $20,063,505 for the same 
date. These amounts represent the Department’s equity position in the State 
Treasurer’s Short-Term Investment portfolio (STIF). The STIF (a portfolio 
within the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool, an external investment pool that 
is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission or subject to 
any formal oversight other than that of the legislative body and does not have 
a credit rating) had a weighted average maturity of 1.6 years as of  
June 30, 2017. Assets and shares of the STIF are valued at fair value. 

At June 30, 2017, the proprietary fund’s Statement of Net Position reported 
pooled investments, $88,951,827 which represents the Department’s equity 
position in the State Treasurer’s Bond Index External Investment Fund (BIF). 
The BIF (a portfolio within the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool, an external 
investment pool that is not registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission or subject to any formal oversight other than that of the legislative 
body) had a weighted average maturity of 7.99 years as of June 30, 2017. 
Assets and shares of the BIF are valued at fair market value. 

Deposit and investment risks associated with the State Treasurer’s Investment 
Pool (which includes the State Treasurer’s STIF and BIF) are included in the 
North Carolina Department of State Treasurer Investment Programs’ separately 
issued audit report. This separately issued report can be obtained from the 
Department of State Treasurer, 3200 Atlantic Avenue, Raleigh, NC 27604 or can 
be accessed from the Department of State Treasurer’s website at 
https://www.nctreasurer.com//inv/Pages/Annual-Supplemental-Reports.aspx in 
the Audited Statements section.  

https://www.nctreasurer.com/inv/Pages/Annual-Supplemental-Reports.aspx
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NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

To the extent available, the Department’s investments are recorded at fair 
value as of June 30, 2017. GASB Statement No. 72 - Fair Value Measurement 
and Application, defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. This statement establishes a hierarchy 
of valuation inputs based on the extent to which the inputs are observable in 
the marketplace. Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques 
and take into account the assumptions that market participants use to make 
valuation decisions. Inputs may include price information, credit data, interest 
and yield curve data, and other factors specific to the financial instrument. 
Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources. In 
contrast, unobservable inputs reflect the entity’s assumptions about how 
market participants would value the financial instrument. Valuation techniques 
should maximize the use of observable inputs to the extent available. 

A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the 
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The 
following describes the hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair value and the 
primary valuation methodologies used for financial instruments measured at 
fair value on a recurring basis: 

Level 1 Investments whose values are based on quoted prices 
(unadjusted) for identical assets in active markets that a 
government can access at the measurement date. 

Level 2 Investments with inputs – other than quoted prices 
included within Level 1 – that are observable for an asset, 
either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3 Investments classified as Level 3 have unobservable inputs 
for an asset and may require a degree of professional 
judgment. 

At June 30, 2017, the Department has the following investments: 

Short-Term Investment Fund – At year-end, all of the Department’s cash 
and cash equivalents valued at $276,071,325 were held in the STIF which is a  
Level 2 investment. Ownership interest of the STIF is determined on a fair 
market valuation basis as of fiscal year end in accordance with the STIF 
operating procedures. Valuation of the underlying assets is performed by the 
custodian. 

Bond Index External Investment Fund – At year end the investments of the 
Department, valued at $88,951,827, were held in the BIF. Ownership interest 
in the BIF is determined monthly at fair market value based upon units of 
participation. Units of participation are calculated monthly based upon inflows 
and outflows as well as allocations of net earnings.  
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NOTE 4 - INTERGOVERNMENTAL RECEIVABLES 

Intergovernmental receivables for the governmental fund at June 30, 2017, 
were as follows: 

Intergovernmental Receivables:
Child Nutrition Program $ 22,875,745
Local School Districts 1,585,809

Total Intergovernmental Receivables $ 24,461,554

Amount

 

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported as 
expenditures in the governmental fund. Consequently, capital asset balances 
are not reported on the face of the governmental fund financial statements. 
Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated 
historical cost. The value of assets constructed included all material direct and 
indirect construction costs that are incurred as a result of the construction. The 
cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 
asset or materially extend its useful life are not capitalized. Donated capital 
assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. 

Generally, capital assets are defined by the Department as assets with an 
initial value or cost greater than or equal to $5,000 and an estimated useful life 
of two or more years. 

Depreciation, which is recorded at the statewide level, is computed using the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets in the 
following manner: 

Asset Class Estimated Useful Life

Buildings 10-100 years
Machinery & Equipment 2-30 years
General Infrastructure 10-75 years
Computer Software 2-30 years
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A summary of changes in the governmental fund's capital asset balances is 
presented as follows: 

Capital Assets, Nondepreciable:
Land $ 52,253          $ 0 $ 0 $ 52,253          
Art, Literature, and Artifacts 419,300        419,300        

Total Capital Assets, Nondepreciable 471,553        471,553        

Capital Assets, Depreciable:
Buildings 46,991,650   46,991,650   
Machinery and Equipment 9,022,433     107,357       396,327       8,733,463     
General Infrastructure 558,126        558,126        
Computer Software 2,352,831     2,352,831     

Total Capital Assets, Depreciable 58,925,040   107,357       396,327       58,636,070   

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings 22,832,881   756,748       23,589,629   
Machinery and Equipment 5,397,737     407,556       357,095       5,448,198     
General Infrastructure 436,657        12,403         449,060        
Computer Software 423,510        94,113         517,623        

Total Accumulated Depreciation 29,090,785   1,270,820    357,095       30,004,510   

Total Capital Assets, Depreciable, Net 29,834,255   (1,163,463)   39,232         28,631,560   

Capital Assets, Net $ 30,305,808   $ (1,163,463)   $ 39,232         $ 29,103,113   

July 1, 2016
Balance

Increases Decreases June 30, 2017
Balance

 

NOTE 6 - INTERGOVERNMENTAL PAYABLES 

Intergovernmental payables at June 30, 2017, were as follows: 

Governmental Fund - General Fund
Intergovernmental Payables:

Accrued Payroll for Schools $ 238,834,287
Child Nutrition Program 22,282,424
Other 156,008

Total Intergovernmental Payables $ 261,272,719

Proprietary Fund - Public School Insurance Fund
Intergovernmental Payables:

State Agency Services $ 2,469

Amount
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

A. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities – A summary of changes in long-
term liabilities is presented as follows: 

Governmental Fund - General Fund

Compensated Absences $ 9,203,007        $ 5,922,301        $ 6,099,946        $ 9,025,362        $ 711,198           
Workers' Compensation 176,663,742    80,569,590      63,556,451      193,676,881    67,786,909      
Financing Agreements 79,200,412      68,560,052      54,990,409      92,770,055      43,296,229      
Net Pension Liability 15,134,426      20,164,604      35,299,030      

Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 280,201,587    $ 175,216,547    $ 124,646,806    $ 330,771,328    $ 111,794,336    

Additional information regarding net pension liability is included in Note 11.

Proprietary Fund- Public School Insurance Fund

Compensated Absences $ 88,800             $ 43,419             $ 33,582             $ 98,637             $ 7,743               
Net Pension Liability 100,551           137,548           238,099           

Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 189,351           $ 180,967           $ 33,582             $ 336,736           $ 7,743               

Additional information regarding net pension liability is included in Note 11.

July 1, 2016
Balance Due Within

One Year
Balance

June 30, 2017ReductionsAdditions

Additional information regarding workers' compensation is included in Note 13.

Due Within
One YearJune 30, 2017

Balance
ReductionsAdditionsJuly 1, 2016

Balance

 

B. Financing Agreements - The Department entered into financing 
agreements with financial institutions on behalf of the school districts to 
fund the replacement of school buses. Pursuant to the annual master 
facilitator agreements between the Department and the respective 
financial institutions, the Department has agreed to collect the installment 
payments from the school districts as they become due under their 
individual financing agreements and to remit the collective payments to 
the respective financial institution. However, upon request by the school 
districts, the Department agreed to make the scheduled payments under 
these financing agreements on behalf of the school districts using funds 
appropriated by the General Assembly for the acquisition of the school 
buses. 

The financing agreements for each applicable fiscal year are scheduled 
for four equal annual installments, with the first installment due upon 
delivery of the school buses. The financing agreements were as follows: 

Governmental Fund - General Fund Final
Installment 

Financing Agreement Financial Institution Date

2013 -2014 Replacement of School Buses Banc of America Public Capital Corporation 11/15/2016 $ 32,728,937 $ 32,728,937 $ 0
2014 -2015 Replacement of School Buses Banc of America Public Capital Corporation 11/15/2017 43,849,656 32,887,242          10,962,414
2015 -2016 Replacement of School Buses Banc of America Public Capital Corporation 11/15/2018 60,775,204 30,387,602          30,387,602
2016 -2017 Replacement of School Buses Banc of America Public Capital Corporation 11/15/2019 68,560,052 17,140,013          51,420,039

Total Financing Agreements $ 205,913,849 $ 113,143,794 $ 92,770,055

Installments
Outstanding

June 30, 2017

Original
Installment

Amount

Installments
Paid Through
June 30, 2017
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NOTE 8 - OPERATING LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

The Department entered into operating leases for copiers, equipment, and 
facilities. Future minimum lease payments under noncancellable operating 
leases consist of the following at June 30, 2017: 

Fiscal Year

2018 $ 194,081  
2019 55,380    
2020 35,555    
2021 16,574    
2022 14,722    

Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 316,312  

Amount

 

Rental expense for all operating leases during the year ended June 30, 2017, 
was $268,512. 

NOTE 9 - FUND BALANCE 

The details of the fund balance classifications for the governmental fund at 
June 30, 2017, are as follows: 

Fund Balance:
Nonspendable:

Inventory $ 2,206,449         

Restricted for:
Primary and Secondary Education 2,544,527         

Committed to:
Primary and Secondary Education 121,159,115     
Public School Capital Projects 119,527,086     

Unassigned (238,742,724)    

Total Fund Balance Increase $ 6,694,453         

Amount
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NOTE 10 - REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES FROM/TO OTHER STATE AGENCIES 

The governmental fund’s revenues and expenditures from/to other state 
agencies by entity and purpose at June 30, 2017, are as follows: 

Purpose
Revenues from Other State Agencies:

Office of State Budget and Management
Civil Penalty Fund General Educational Support $ 202,698,650
Lottery Funds General Educational Support 472,452,291

Department of Revenue General Educational Support 64,360,412
Department of Health and Human Services Medicaid Funds for Services to Exceptional Children 15,671,494
Department of Technology Governmental Data Analytics Center (GDAC) 220,000

Total Revenues from Other State Agencies $ 755,402,847

Purpose
Expenditures to Other State Agencies:

Community College System Office Title IV Perkins Funds $ 10,450,243
Administrative Hearings Office Pay litigation costs for NC State Board of Education Rules 50,000
Department of Health and Human Services Psychiatric Residential Treatment Facility Services 3,020,758

Total Revenues from Other State Agencies $ 13,521,001

Amount

Amount

 

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS 

Defined Benefit Plan 

Pension contributions to cost-sharing plans are recognized as expenditures in 
the period to which the payment relates, even if payment is not due until the 
subsequent period. Consequently, the net pension liability, discussed in  
Note 7 to the financial statements, is not reported on the face of the 
governmental fund financial statements. However, the net pension liability for 
the proprietary fund is reported on the face of the proprietary fund financial 
statements. 

Plan Administration: The State of North Carolina administers the Teachers’ 
and State Employees’ Retirement System (TSERS) plan. This plan is a  
cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan established by 
the State to provide pension benefits for general employees and law 
enforcement officers (LEOs) of the State, general employees and LEOs of its 
component units, and employees of Local Education Agencies (LEAs) and 
charter schools not in the reporting entity. Membership is comprised of 
employees of the State (state agencies and institutions), universities, 
community colleges, and certain proprietary component units along with the 
LEAs and charter schools that elect to join the retirement system. Benefit 
provisions are established by General Statute 135-5 and may be amended 
only by the North Carolina General Assembly. 

Benefits Provided: TSERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. 
Retirement benefits are determined as 1.82% of the member’s average final 
compensation times the member’s years of creditable service. A member’s 
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average final compensation is calculated as the average of a member’s four 
highest consecutive years of compensation. General employee plan members 
are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 65 with five years of 
creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years of creditable service, or at any age 
with 30 years of creditable service. General employee plan members are 
eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years of 
creditable service or at age 60 with five years of creditable service. Survivor 
benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of general members who die 
while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who 
also have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age, or 
have completed five years of service and have reached age 60. Eligible 
beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor’s Alternate Benefit for 
life or a return of the member’s contributions. The plan does not provide for 
automatic post-retirement benefit increases. Increases are contingent upon 
actuarial gains of the plan. 

Contributions: Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 135-8 
and may be amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly. 
Employees are required to contribute 6% of their annual pay. The contribution 
rate for employers is set each year by the North Carolina General Assembly in 
the Appropriations Act based on the actuarially-determined rate recommended 
by the actuary. The Department’s contractually-required contribution rate for the 
year ended June 30, 2017 was 9.98% of covered payroll. The employee’s 
contributions to the pension plan were $3,868,684, and the Department’s 
contributions were $6,434,910 for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

The TSERS plan’s financial information, including all information about the 
plan’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and fiduciary net position, is included in the State of North 
Carolina’s fiscal year 2016 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. An 
electronic version of this report is available on the North Carolina Office of the 
State Controller’s website at http://www.osc.nc.gov/ or by calling the State 
Controller’s Financial Reporting Section at (919) 707-0500. 

TSERS Basis of Accounting: The financial statements of the TSERS plan 
were prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member 
contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. 
Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has a 
legal requirement to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of each plan. 
The plan’s fiduciary net position was determined on the same basis used by 
the pension plan. 

Methods Used to Value TSERS Investment: Pursuant to North Carolina 
General Statutes, the State Treasurer is the custodian and administrator of the 
retirement system. The State Treasurer maintains various investment 
portfolios in its Investment Pool. The pension trust funds are the primary 
participants in the Long-term Investment portfolio and the sole participants in 
the External Fixed Income Investment, Equity Investment, Real Estate 
Investment, Alternative Investment, Credit Investment, and Inflation Protection 
Investment portfolios. The Fixed Income Asset Class includes the Long-Term 

http://www.osc.nc.gov/
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Investment and External Fixed Income Investments Portfolios. The Global 
Equity Asset Class includes the Equity Investment Portfolio. The investment 
balance of each pension trust fund represents its share of the fair market 
value of the net position of the various portfolios within the pool. Detailed 
descriptions of the methods and significant assumptions regarding 
investments of the State Treasurer are provided in the 2016 Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report. 

Net Pension Liability: At June 30, 2017, the Department’s proportionate share of 
the collective net pension liability was $35,537,129. Of this amount, the 
governmental fund’s share was $35,299,030, and the proprietary fund’s share 
was $238,099. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016. The 
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by 
an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2015, and update procedures were 
used to roll forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2016. The Department’s 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on the present value of future 
salaries for the Department relative to the present value of future salaries for all 
participating employers, actuarially-determined. As of June 30, 2016, the 
Department’s proportion was 0.38665%, which was a decrease of 0.02676 from 
its proportion measured as of June 30, 2015. 

Actuarial Assumptions: The following table presents the actuarial assumptions 
used to determine the total pension liability for the TSERS plan at the actuarial 
valuation date: 

Valuation Date 12/31/2015
Inflation 3%
Salary Increases* 3.50%  - 8.10%
Investment Rate of Return** 7.25%

* Salary increases include 3.5%  inflation and productivity factor.
** Investment rate of return is net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation. 

TSERS currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group 
(i.e. teacher, general, law enforcement officer), and health status (i.e. disabled 
and healthy). The current mortality rates are based on published tables and 
based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population. The 
mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2015 valuations were 
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period  
January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014. 

Future ad hoc Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) amounts are not considered to 
be substantively automatic and are therefore not included in the measurement. 

The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are 
developed through review of current and historical capital markets data, sell-side 
investment research, consultant whitepapers, and historical performance of 
investment strategies. Fixed income return projections reflect current yields 
across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward yields 
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projected and interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons. 
Global public equity return projections are established through analysis of the 
equity risk premium and the fixed income return projections. Other asset 
categories and strategies’ return projections reflect the foregoing and historical 
data analysis. These projections are combined to produce the long-term 
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best 
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in 
the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2016 (the valuation date) 
are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class
Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return

Fixed Income 1.4%
Global Equity 5.3%
Real Estate 4.3%
Alternatives 8.9%
Credit 6.0%
Inflation Protection 4.0%

 

The information in the preceding table is based on 30-year expectations 
developed with the consulting actuary and is part of the asset, liability, and 
investment policy of the North Carolina Retirement Systems. The long-term 
nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic 
annualized figures. The real rates of return are calculated from nominal rates 
by multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 3.05%. 
Return projections do not include any excess return expectations over 
benchmark averages. All rates of return and inflation are annualized. 

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability 
was 7.25%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate 
assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current 
contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at 
statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those 
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of the current plan 
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The 
following presents the net pension liability of the plan at June 30, 2016 
calculated using the discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage 
point lower (6.25%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.25%) than the current 
rate: 

66,838,473$                  35,537,129$                              9,216,990$                    

Net Pension Liability
1%  Decrease (6.25% ) Current Discount Rate (7.25% ) 1%  Increase (8.25% )
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Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions: For the year ended June 30, 2017, the governmental fund’s 
proportionate share of the collective pension expense was $6,808,624, and the 
proprietary fund recognized pension expense of $45,925. At June 30, 2017, the 
Department reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows

Difference Between Actual and 
Expected Experience $ 0 $ 1,679,534

Changes of Assumptions 5,240,863             

Net Difference Between Projected and
Actual Earnings on Pension Plan
Investments 12,673,680            

Change in Proportion and Differences
Between Agency's Contributions and
Proportionate Share of Contributions 525,345 710,995

Contributions Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date 6,434,910

Total $ 24,874,798 $ 2,390,529

Employer Balances of Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions by Classification:

of Resources
Deferred Inflows

of Resources

 

The governmental fund’s deferred outflows of resources related to pensions of 
$6,399,374 will represent a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2018, and $35,536 reported as deferred outflows for the 
proprietary funds will be included as a reduction of the net pension liability in 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

$ 2,747,320
2,744,245
6,720,084
3,837,710

$ 16,049,359Total

Schedule of the Net Amount of the Employer's Balances of  
Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources That will be Recognized in Pension Expense:

Year ended June 30: Amount

2018
2019
2020
2021

 

NOTE 12 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

A. Health Benefits - The Department participates in the Comprehensive 
Major Medical Plan (the Plan), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined 
benefit health care plan that provides postemployment health insurance 
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to eligible former employees. Eligible former employees include long-term 
disability beneficiaries of the Disability Income Plan of North Carolina and 
retirees of the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System 
(TSERS). Coverage eligibility varies depending on years of contributory 
membership service in their retirement system prior to disability or 
retirement. 

The Plan’s benefit and contribution provisions are established by  
Chapter 135, Article 3B, of the General Statutes, and may be amended 
only by the North Carolina General Assembly. The Plan does not provide 
for automatic post-retirement benefit increases. 

By General Statute, a Retiree Health Benefit Fund (the Fund) has been 
established as a fund in which accumulated contributions from employers 
and any earnings on those contributions shall be used to provide health 
benefits to retired and disabled employees and applicable beneficiaries. 
By statute, the Fund is administered by the Board of Trustees of TSERS 
and contributions to the Fund are irrevocable. Also by law, Fund assets 
are dedicated to providing benefits to retired and disabled employees and 
applicable beneficiaries and are not subject to the claims of creditors of 
the employers making contributions to the Fund. Contribution rates to the 
Fund, which are intended to finance benefits and administrative 
expenses on a pay-as-you-go basis, are established by the General 
Assembly. 

For the period July 1, 2016 throught December 31, 2016, the Department 
contributed 5.60% of the covered payroll under TSERS to the Fund, and 
for the period January 1, 2017 to June 30, 2017, the Department 
contributed 6.02% of the covered payroll under TSERS to the Fund. 
Required contribution rates for the years ended June 30, 2016, and 2015, 
were 5.60% and 5.49%, respectively. The Department made 100% of its 
annual required contributions to the Plan for the years ended  
June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015, which were $3,610,771, $3,552,762, and 
$3,700,680, respectively. The Department assumes no liability for retiree 
health care benefits provided by the programs other than its required 
contribution. 

Additional detailed information about these programs can be located in the 
State of North Carolina’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. An 
electronic version of this report is available on the North Carolina Office of 
the State Controller’s website at http://www.osc.nc.gov/ or by calling the 
State Controller’s Financial Reporting Section at (919) 707-0500. 

B. Disability Income - The Department participates in the Disability Income 
Plan of North Carolina (DIPNC), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer 
defined benefit plan, to provide short-term and long-term disability 
benefits to eligible members of TSERS. Benefit and contribution 
provisions are established by Chapter 135, Article 6, of the General 
Statutes, and may be amended only by the North Carolina General 
Assembly. The Plan does not provide for automatic post-retirement 
benefit increases. 
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Disability income benefits are funded by actuarially determined employer 
contributions that are established by the General Assembly. For the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2017, the Department made a statutory contribution 
of .38% of covered payroll under the TSERS to the DIPNC. Required 
contribution rates for the years ended June 30, 2016, and 2015, were 
.41% in both years. The Department made 100% of its annual required 
contributions to the DIPNC for the years ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and 
2015, which were $245,017, $260,113, and $276,371, respectively. The 
Department assumes no liability for long-term disability benefits under the 
Plan other than its contribution. 

Additional detailed information about the DIPNC is disclosed in the State 
of North Carolina’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

NOTE 13 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

A. Public Entity Risk Pool - The Public School Insurance Fund (the Fund) 
is a public entity risk pool reported within the State’s proprietary fund. In 
accordance with Chapter 115C, Article 38, of the General Statutes, the 
purpose of the Fund is to insure the schools, in order to safeguard the 
property investments made in the public schools of North Carolina. North 
Carolina community colleges, which are related parties, can also acquire 
insurance through the Fund as stated in General Statute 115D-58.11(c). 
The board of each school district and the board of trustees of each 
community college are required to insure their buildings and contents on 
a replacement cost basis, as suggested by the Fund. The Fund is 
financed by premiums collected from the schools and the community 
colleges and interest is earned on the Fund's cash balance. Each board 
has to give notice of its election to insure in the Fund at least 30 days 
prior to such insurance becoming effective and shall furnish to the Fund a 
detailed list of all school buildings, contents and other insurable school 
property. While policies remain in effect, the Fund shall act as insurer of 
the properties covered by such insurance. The Fund currently insures 87 
out of 116 public school districts and 31 out of 58 community colleges. 

Claim liabilities are based on estimates of the ultimate cost of losses that 
have been reported but not settled. There are no salvage claims since 
any salvage is adjusted in the claim settlement. There are no subrogation 
claims pending. Since claims are reviewed by adjusters and the actual 
loss projection is computed in a short time after the claim is reported, the 
claim adjustment expense associated with the unpaid claim liability will 
be reflected in the current period. The Fund does not hold any annuity 
contracts. The Fund does not agree to structured settlements to pay 
specific amounts on fixed or determinable dates. 

The only acquisition costs are related to proposal costs and inspection 
costs for insured members. Since the Fund can only insure the schools 
and the community colleges, new contracts are immaterial. Since existing 
contracts are renewed once a year, the Fund's costs are for policy 
maintenance. Therefore, acquisition costs do not need to be amortized. 



 
 

35 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The following schedule shows the changes in the reported liability for the 
year ended June 30, 2017 and 2016: 

Unpaid Claims at Beginning of Year $ 5,794,482 $ 10,176,077

Incurred Claims:
Provision for Insured Events of the Current Year 16,149,000     943,000        
Decreases in Provision for Insured Events of Prior Years (2,354,016)      (336,545)      

Total Incurred Claims 13,794,984     606,455        

Payments:
Claims Attributable to Insured Events of the Current Year 4,187,643       872,000        
Claims Attributable to Insured Events of the Prior Years 3,440,112       4,116,050     

Total Payments 7,627,755       4,988,050     

Total Unpaid Claims at End of the Year $ 11,961,711     $ 5,794,482     

2017 2016

 

With the collection of premiums from the insured educational units, 
payment of valid claims becomes the responsibility of the Fund. All claims 
greater than $10,000,000 per occurrence are covered by reinsurance 
contracts. Maximum recoverable from reinsurance for any one 
catastrophic event is $45,500,000 per occurrence. Losses in excess of the 
reinsurance limit would be paid by the Fund from long-term investments, 
subject to the maximum amount of available funds. Annual aggregate 
limits of $15,000,000 apply separately with respect to flood and 
earthquake. Coverage applies to "all risk" perils. Boiler and machinery 
coverage is provided under separate contract underwritten by the Fund. 
Incurred losses are reduced by estimated amounts recoverable under the 
Fund’s reinsurance policies. 

B. State-Administered Risk Management Programs 

The Department is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, 
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to 
employees; and natural disasters. These exposures to loss are handled via 
a combination of methods, including participation in state-administered 
insurance programs, purchase of commercial insurance, and self-retention 
of certain risks. There have been no significant reductions in insurance 
coverage from the previous year and settled claims have not exceeded 
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

C. Employee Benefit Plans 

1. State Health Plan 

Department employees and retirees are provided comprehensive 
major medical care benefits. Coverage is funded by contributions to 
the State Health Plan (Plan), a discretely presented component unit 
of the State of North Carolina. The Plan is funded by employer and 
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employee contributions. The Plan has contracted with third parties to 
process claims. 

2. Death Benefit Plan of North Carolina 

Term life insurance (death benefits) of $25,000 to $50,000 is 
provided to eligible workers. This Death Benefit Plan is administered 
by the State Treasurer and funded via employer contributions. The 
employer contribution rate was .16% for the current fiscal year. 

D. Other Risk Management and Insurance Activities 

1. Automobile, Fire, and Other Property Losses 

The Department is required to maintain fire and lightning coverage 
on all state-owned buildings and contents through the State 
Property Fire Insurance Fund (Fund), an internal service fund of the 
State. Such coverage is provided at no cost to the Department for 
operations supported by the State’s General Fund. Other operations 
not supported by the State’s General Fund are charged for the 
coverage. Losses covered by the Fund are subject to a $5,000 per 
occurrence deductible. However, some agencies have chosen a 
higher deductible for a reduction in premium. 

All state-owned vehicles are covered by liability insurance through a 
private insurance company and handled by the North Carolina 
Department of Insurance. The liability limits for losses are $1,000,000 
per claim and $10,000,000 per occurrence. The Department pays 
premiums to the North Carolina Department of Insurance for the 
coverage. 

2. Public Officers’ and Employees’ Liability Insurance 

The risk of tort claims of up to $1,000,000 per claimant is retained 
under the authority of the State Tort Claims Act. In addition, the State 
provides excess public officers’ and employees’ liability insurance up 
to $10,000,000 via contract with a private insurance company. The 
Department pays the premium, based on a composite rate, directly to 
the private insurer. 

3. Employee Dishonesty and Computer Fraud 

The Department is protected for losses from employee dishonesty and 
computer fraud. This coverage is with a private insurance company 
and is handled by the North Carolina Department of Insurance. The 
Department is charged a premium by the private insurance company. 
Coverage limit is $5,000,000 per occurrence. The private insurance 
company pays 90% of each loss less a $100,000 deductible.  
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4. Statewide Workers’ Compensation Program 

The North Carolina Workers’ Compensation Program provides 
benefits to workers injured on the job. All employees of the State 
and its component units are included in the program. The program 
also includes employees of the public schools whose salaries are 
paid with state funds. On behalf of the State Board of Education, the 
Department administers the program for the state-funded public 
school employees. When an employee is injured, the Department’s 
primary responsibility is to arrange for and provide the necessary 
treatment for work related injury. The Department is responsible for 
paying medical benefits and compensation in accordance with the 
North Carolina Workers’ Compensation Act. The Department retains 
the risk for workers’ compensation. 

Additional details on the state-administered risk management 
programs are disclosed in the State’s Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report, issued by the Office of the State Controller. 

NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

A. Pending Litigation and Claims 

Hoke County, et al. v. State of North Carolina and State Board of 
Education — Right to a Sound Basic Education (formerly Leandro).  
In 1994, students and boards of education in five counties in the State 
filed suit in Superior Court requesting a declaration that the public 
education system of North Carolina, including its system of funding, 
violates the state Constitution by failing to provide adequate or 
substantially equal educational opportunities, by denying due process of 
law, and by violating various statutes relating to public education. Five 
other school boards and students therein intervened, alleging claims for 
relief on the basis of the high proportion of at-risk and high-cost students 
in their counties' systems. 

The suit is similar to a number of suits in other states, some of which 
resulted in holdings that the respective systems of public education 
funding were unconstitutional under the applicable state law. The State 
filed a motion to dismiss, which was denied. On appeal, the North 
Carolina Supreme Court upheld the present funding system against the 
claim that it unlawfully discriminated against low wealth counties, but 
remanded the case for trial on the claim for relief based on the Court's 
conclusion that the Constitution guarantees every child the opportunity to 
obtain a sound basic education. Trial on the claim of one plaintiff-county 
was held in the fall of 1999. On October 26, 2000 the trial court, in 
Section Two of a projected three-part ruling, concluded that at-risk 
children in North Carolina are constitutionally entitled to such  
pre-kindergarten educational programs as may be necessary to prepare 
them for higher levels of education and the “sound basic education” 
mandated by the Supreme Court. On March 26, 2001, the Court issued 
Section Three of the three-part ruling, in which the judge ordered all 
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parties to investigate certain school systems to determine why they are 
succeeding without additional funding. The State filed a Notice of Appeal 
to the Court of Appeals, which resulted in the Court’s decision to re-open 
the trial and call additional witnesses. That proceeding took place in the 
fall of 2001. On April 4, 2002, the Court entered Section Four of the 
ruling, ordering the State to take such actions as may be necessary to 
remedy the constitutional deficiency for those children who are not being 
provided with access to a sound basic education and to report to the 
Court at 90-day intervals remedial actions being implemented. On  
July 30, 2004, the North Carolina Supreme Court affirmed the majority of 
the trial court’s orders, thereby directing the executive and legislative 
branches to take corrective action necessary to ensure that every child 
has the opportunity to obtain a sound, basic education. The Supreme 
Court did agree with the State that the trial court exceeded its authority in 
ordering pre-kindergarten programs for at-risk children. The State is now 
undertaking measures to respond to the trial court’s directives. The 
magnitude of state resources which may ultimately be required cannot be 
determined at this time; however, the total cost could exceed $100 million. 

On June 15, 2011, the General Assembly enacted legislation which 
placed certain restrictions on the North Carolina Pre-Kindergarten 
Program (N.C. Pre-K) which had been established by the General 
Assembly in 2001. Following a hearing requested by the plaintiffs, the 
trial court entered an order prohibiting the enforcement of legislation 
having the effect of restricting participation in the N.C. Pre-K program. On 
appeal, the North Carolina Court of Appeals affirmed the trial court’s 
order prohibiting the State from denying any eligible “at risk” children 
admission to the N.C. Pre-K program. The State has appealed this 
decision and the North Carolina Supreme Court, in November 2013, held 
that amendments to the 2011 legislation had rendered the appeal moot. 
The case will now be remanded to Superior Court. 

B. Federal Grants 

The Department receives significant financial assistance from the federal 
government in the form of grants and entitlements, which are generally 
conditioned upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant 
agreements and applicable federal regulations, including the expenditure 
of the resources for eligible purposes. Under the terms of the grants, 
periodic audits are required and certain costs may be questioned as not 
being appropriate expenditures. Any disallowance as a result of questioned 
costs could become a liability of the Department. As of June 30, 2017, the 
Department is unable to estimate what liabilities may result from such audits. 
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Fund Balance-Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis-Non-GAAP)  
General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 Schedule C-1

Budgeted Amounts
Actual Favorable

Original Final (Cash Basis) (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Federal Funds 3,690,464,261$      1,923,535,920$        1,498,228,044$       (425,307,876)$     
Revenues from Other State Agencies 708,917,341 779,172,613 779,172,613
Contributions, Gifts, and Grants 9,561,563 10,829,934 13,623,222 2,793,288
E Rate Telecommunication/Internet Program Funds 15,053,450 15,053,451 1
Sales and Services 1,858,014 1,629,358 1,439,291 (190,067)
Licensure Certification and Registration Fees 2,505,760 3,791,676 3,078,066 (713,610)
Property and Equipment Rental 1,600,000 1,600,000 1,440,948 (159,052)
Investment Earnings 5,579,654 4,335,072 1,953,346 (2,381,726)
Student Tuition and Fees 325,000 543,929 543,945 16
Miscellaneous 7,360 1,432,437 2,966,378 1,533,938

Total Revenues 4,420,818,953 2,741,924,389 2,317,499,304 (424,425,088)

Expenditures:    
Grants, State, and Federal Aid 12,651,881,484 11,183,701,098 10,508,227,189 675,473,909
Contracted Services 139,973,282 142,003,686 101,818,634 40,185,052
Personal Services 157,613,399 147,238,603 141,747,694 5,490,909
Supplies and Materials and Purchases for Resale 5,989,783 7,895,439 4,223,113 3,672,326
Travel 7,057,837 6,467,874 3,991,918 2,475,956
Communication and Data Processing Services 14,832,952 34,395,674 24,337,153 10,058,521
Utilities 857,731 1,223,470 1,191,802 31,668
Other Services 3,956,338 3,960,476 5,634,388 (1,673,912)
Claims and Benefits 18,221,384 7,747,861 2,031,667 5,716,194
Other Fixed Charges 5,701,038 7,172,614 5,837,030 1,335,584
Capital Outlay 112,635,690 93,343,570 68,259,007 25,084,563
Scholarships 760,498 1,717,442 1,717,442
Insurance and Bonding 3,956,338 3,960,476 2,963,650 996,826
Other Expenditures 2,033,146 3,279,098 2,210,397 1,068,701
Reserves 58,999,838 83,853,707 83,853,707
Expenditures to Other State Agencies 32,614,041 60,730,803 43,080,572 17,650,231
 

Total Expenditures 13,217,084,779 11,788,691,891 10,915,554,214 873,137,680

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (8,796,265,826) (9,046,767,503) (8,598,054,910) 448,712,593

Other Financing Sources:
State Appropriations 8,780,895,207 8,780,895,207 8,624,938,463 (156,100,535)
Sale of Capital Assets 1,509,000 1,509,000 2,554,415 1,045,415
Insurance Recoveries 226,697 226,697

Total Other Financing Sources 8,782,404,207 8,782,404,207 8,627,719,575 (154,828,422)

Net Change in Fund Balance (13,861,619) (264,363,296) 29,664,665 293,884,170

Fund Balance July 1, 2016 (244,439,642) 40,280,599 226,343,155 186,062,556

Fund Balance June 30, 2017 (258,301,261)$       (224,082,697)$          256,007,820$           479,946,726$      

The accompanying notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.

North Carolina Department of Public Instruction
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND 
ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS - NON-GAAP) - GENERAL FUND 

A. BUDGETARY PROCESS 
The State’s annual budget is prepared principally on the cash basis. The 1985 
General Assembly enacted certain special provisions which state that the budget as 
certified in the appropriations act is the original legal budget for all agencies. These 
special provisions also state that agencies may spend more than was certified in 
various line items provided the over-expenditure meets certain criteria and is 
authorized by the Director of the Budget. The process of approving these over-
expenditures results in the final authorized budget amounts. 

B. RECONCILIATION OF BUDGET/GAAP REPORTING DIFFERENCES 
The Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget 
and Actual (Budgetary Basis - Non-GAAP) - General Fund, presents comparisons of 
legally adopted budget with actual data on a budgetary basis. Accounting principles 
applied to develop data on a budgetary basis differ significantly from those principles 
used to present financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP). The following describes the major differences 
between budgetary financial data and GAAP financial data. 

Basis differences: Budgetary fund balance is accounted for on the cash basis of 
accounting while GAAP fund balance is accounted for on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. Accrued revenues and expenditures are recognized in the 
GAAP financial statements. 

The following table presents a reconciliation of resulting basis in the fund balances 
(budgetary basis) to the fund balance on a modified accrual basis (GAAP) at  
June 30, 2017. 

Fund Balance (Budgetary Basis) June 30, 2017 $ 256,007,820        

Reconciling Adjustments:

Basis Differences:
Accrued Revenues:

Accounts Receivable                  81,105 
Intergovernmental Receivables           24,461,554 
Interest Receivable                238,929 

Less:
Unearned revenue (6,913,866)          

Total Accrued Revenues 17,867,722          

Accrued Expenditures:
Accounts Payable            (8,114,528)
Accrued Payroll (291)                    
Intergovernmental Payables (261,272,719)      

Total Accrued Expenditures (269,387,538)      

Other Adjustments:
Inventories 2,206,449            

Fund Balance (GAAP Basis) June 30, 2017 $ 6,694,453            

General Fund
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TEN-YEAR CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION - PUBLIC SCHOOL INSURANCE FUND 

The Public School Insurance Fund (the Fund) is a public entity risk pool within the State's 
proprietary fund. All valid claims are the responsibility of the Fund, and are supported by 
premiums collected from the insured educational units. The Fund does not receive any state 
appropriations. 

The Ten-Year Claims Development Information schedule shows the correlation between 
original estimated claim amounts and reestimated claims amounts. This can be used to 
evaluate the accuracy of the Department's estimated claims and its ability to estimate the 
ultimate value of the claims. 

The Ten-Year Claims Development Information schedule illustrates how earned revenues 
(net of reinsurance) and investment income of the Fund compare to related costs of loss 
(net of loss assumed by reinsurers) and other expenses assumed by the Fund for the last 
ten fiscal years ended June 30. The rows of the table are defined as follows: 

(1) Total of each fiscal year's earned contribution revenues, investment revenues, 
contribution revenues ceded to excess insurers or reinsurers, and amount of 
reported revenues net of excess insurance or reinsurance. 

(2) Each fiscal year's other operating costs of the Fund, including overhead and claims 
expense not allocable to individual claims. 

(3) The Fund's incurred claims (both paid and accrued) as originally reported at the 
end of the first year in which the event that triggered coverage under the contract 
occurred (before the effect of loss assumed by excess insurers or reinsurers), the 
loss assumed by excess insurers or reinsurers, and total net amount of incurred 
claims and allocated claim adjustment expenses. 

(4) Cumulative amounts paid as of the end of successive years for each policy year. 

(5) The most current reestimated amount of losses assumed by reinsurers for each 
accident year. The amount can and will be changed as claims and expenses are 
reevaluated. 

(6) The reestimated net incurred claims and expenses based on the information 
available as of the end of the year. This annual reestimation results from new 
information received on known claims, reevaluation of existing information on 
known claims, as well as emergence of new claims not previously known. 

(7) Comparison of the latest reestimated net incurred claims amount to the amount 
originally established (line 3) and indication of whether this latest estimate of claims 
cost is greater or less than originally thought. 



Department of Public Instruction
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of the Proportionate Net Pension Liability 
Teachers' and State Employees' Retirement System
Last Four Fiscal Years Schedule C-3

Proportionate Share Percentage of
   Collective Net Pension Liability 0.38665% 0.41341% 0.44261% 0.43670%

Proportionate Share of TSERS
   Collective Net Pension Liability $ 35,537,129 $ 15,234,977  $ 5,224,425      $ 26,512,140

Covered-Employee Payroll $ 63,442,170 $ 67,407,650  $ 69,742,084    $ 68,421,885

Net Pension Liability as a 
   Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll 56.01% 22.60% 7.49% 38.01%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
   Total Pension Liability 87.32% 94.64% 98.24% 90.60%

2016 2015 2014

Note: Amounts presented are for the Department as a whole. The net pension liability associated with the Public School
Insurance Fund was $238,099 as of June 30, 2017.

2013
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Department of Public Instruction
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Department Contributions
Teachers' and State Employees' Retirement System
Last Four Fiscal Years Schedule C-4

Contractually Required Contribution $ 6,434,910  $ 5,804,959  $ 6,167,800    $ 6,060,587 
Contributions in Relation to the
   Contractually Determined Contribution 6,434,910  5,804,959  6,167,800    6,060,587 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

Covered Payroll $ 64,478,060 $ 63,442,170 $ 67,407,650  $ 69,742,084

Contributions as a Percentage of
   Covered Payroll 9.98% 9.15% 9.15% 8.69%

Note: Amounts presented are for the Department as a whole.

Changes in benefit terms, methods, and assumptions are presented in the Notes to Required Supplementary Information 
(RSI) schedule following the pension RSI tables. 

20142017 2016 2015
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Department of Public Instruction
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Department Contributions
Teachers' and State Employees' Retirement System
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Changes of Benefit Terms:

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
N/A N/A N/A 1.00% N/A N/A N/A 2.20% 2.20% 3.00%

Changes of assumptions. In 2008, 2012, and 2015, the actuarial assumptions were updated to more closely reflect actual
experience. In 2015, the North Carolina Retirement Systems' consulting actuaries performed the quinquennial investigation
of each retirement systems' actual demographic and economic experience (known as the "Experience Review"). The
Experience Review provides the basis for selecting the actuarial assumptions and methods used to determine plan liabilities
and funding requirements. The most recent Experience Review examined each plan's experience during the period between
January 1, 2010, and December 31, 2014. Based on the findings, the Board of Trustees of the Teachers' and State
Employees' Retirement System adopted a number of new actuarial assumptions and methods. The most notable changes
to the assumptions include updates to the mortality tables and the mortality improvement projection scales to reflect
reduced rates of mortality and significant increases in mortality improvements. These assumptions were adjusted to reflect
the mortality projection scale MP-2015, released by the Society of Actuaries in 2015. In addition, the assumed rates of
retirement, salary increases, and rates of termination from active employment were reduced to more closely reflect actual
experience. 

The Notes to Required Supplementary Information reflects information included in the State of North Carolina’s 2016 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Cost of Living Increase
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
     (With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2016) Schedule D-1

REVENUES
Federal Funds:

Child Nutrition Cluster $ 537,187,125 $ 538,193,025
Title I Grants to School Districts 427,861,784 420,272,528
Special Education: Preschool Grants & Grants to States 356,998,856 342,746,681
School Improvement Grants Cluster 5,025,275 10,590,592
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States                                  34,202,145 35,285,983
English Language Acquisition State Grants 15,109,214 15,017,610
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 43,658,058 48,053,939
Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers 29,117,199 34,657,763
(SFSF) Race-to-the-Top Incentive Grants 24,878,412
Other Federal Funds 52,946,002 51,479,577

 Total Federal Funds 1,502,105,658 1,521,176,110

Revenues from Other State Agencies:
Office of State Budget and Management:

Civil Penalty Fund 202,698,650 150,807,602
Lottery Funds 472,452,291 410,455,157

Department of Revenue 64,360,412 61,254,275
Department of Health and Human Services 15,671,494 15,697,168
Other 220,000

Total Revenues from Other State Agencies 755,402,847 638,214,202

Contributions, Gifts, and Grants 13,619,690 11,022,099
E Rate Telecommunication and Internet Access Program Funds 15,053,451 11,926,105
Sales and Services 1,556,097 1,811,343
Licensure Certification and Registration Fees 3,733,221 2,968,013
Property and Equipment Rental 1,440,948 1,932,316
Investment Earnings 2,064,769 1,260,060
Student Tuition and Fees 526,691 542,685
Miscellaneous 9,354,513 8,272,827

Total Revenues (See Exhibit A-2) $ 2,304,857,885 $ 2,199,125,760

North Carolina Department of Public Instruction
Supplementary Information
Schedule of Revenues by Source
General Fund

2017 2016
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 Schedule D-2
     (With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2016) Page 1 of 2

EXPENDITURES
Expenditures Paid by the Department to Schools or On Their Behalf:

Grants, State, and Federal Aid to Schools  (See Schedule D-3) $ 10,528,127,137 $ 10,172,393,913

Supplemental Benefits for Schools:
Workers' Compensation Payments for School Employees 55,449,661        48,480,698
Claims and Benefits, Primarily School Unemployment Payments 2,031,667           3,866,216
Excess Professional Liability Insurance for School Employees 2,368,834           2,370,178

Total Supplemental Benefits for Schools 59,850,162 54,717,092

School Buses, Textbooks, and Other Costs Paid for Schools:
School Bus Replacement, Financing Payments 62,455,595        43,708,516
Textbooks 5,427,994          4,501,105
Payment of Tort Claim Settlements 4,454,890           6,899,785

Total School Buses, Textbooks, and Other Costs Paid for Schools 72,338,479 55,109,406

Residential School Operating Costs:
North Carolina School for the Deaf 8,604,615          8,590,839
Eastern North Carolina School for the Deaf 8,286,249 7,661,918
Governor Morehead School 6,463,123          6,737,337

Total Residential School Operating Costs 23,353,987 22,990,094

North Carolina Center for Advancement of Teaching 3,500,970          3,365,942

Total Expenditures Paid by the Department to Schools or On Their Behalf 10,687,170,735 10,308,576,447

Expenditures Paid for Department Operations and Administration:
Contracted  Services:

Academic Services 20,129,424        23,902,722
Other Information Tech Services 21,051,904        14,451,659
Other Contractual Services 54,802,902        62,992,208

Total Contracted Services 95,984,230 101,346,589

Salaries and Wages:
Salaries Subject to State Personnel Act 44,175,149        43,809,330
Salaries Exempt Under State Personnel Act 3,930,219          3,790,939
Longevity Pay 1,491,717          1,548,879
Temporary Wages 208                     8,787
Other Contractual Services 771,224              758,355

Total Salaries and Wages 50,368,517 49,916,290

Employee Benefits:
Medical Insurance Contributions 3,725,060           3,660,899
Other Medical Insurance 469,394              770,454
Regular Retirement Contributions 8,127,055           7,546,468
Social Security Contributions 3,679,524          3,649,122
Other Employee Benefits (2,790)

Total Employee Benefits 16,001,033 15,624,153

North Carolina Department of Public Instruction
Supplementary Information
Schedule of Expenditures by Purpose
General Fund

2017 2016
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 Schedule D-2
     (With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2016) Page 2 of 2

Supplies and Materials:
Educational Supplies 2,706,200           2,556,276
Other Supplies and Materials 285,662              537,430

Total Supplies and Materials 2,991,862 3,093,706

Purchases for Resale 93,913                1,206,427
Travel:

Ground Transportation In-State 1,204,976          1,591,823
Ground Transportation Out-of-State 35,434                41,855
Lodging 668,051              598,856
Workshops 825,446              733,062
Other Travel 847,978              723,565

Total Travel 3,581,885 3,689,161

Communication 542,959              555,871
Utilities 69,814
Data Processing Services:

Managed Local Network Service Charge 22,424,550        22,094,625
Managed Server Services 242,636              872,358
Other Server Services 128,160              366,817

Total Data Processing Services 22,795,346 23,333,800

Other Services 6,785,470          1,968,101
Other Fixed Charges:

Network Software Maintenance Agreement 506,976              877,446
Server Software Maintenance Agreement 673,716              800,265
Membership Dues and Subscriptions 1,651,873           1,970,174
Other Fixed Charges 143,254              338,977

Total Other Fixed Charges 2,975,819 3,986,862

Expenditures to Other State Agencies:
Community College 10,450,243        12,643,457
Other Expenditures 3,070,758           3,461,884

Total Expenditures to Other State Agencies 13,521,001 16,105,341

Capital Outlay:
Server Software 333,549              4,943,917
Other Capital Outlays 1,404,448          2,105,632

Total Capital Outlay 1,737,997 7,049,549

Other Expenditures:
Forgiven Loans Under Teaching Fellows Loan Program 125,455
Workshop Expenses 1,417,752          1,409,277
Other Expenditures 1,992,319           223,930

Total Other Expenditures 3,410,071 1,758,662

Total Expenditures Paid for Department Operations and Administration 220,790,104 229,704,326

Total Expenditures (See Exhibit A-2) $ 10,907,960,838 $ 10,538,280,773

2017 2016

North Carolina Department of Public Instruction
Supplementary Information
Schedule of Expenditures by Purpose
General Fund
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 Schedule D-3
Page 1 of 2

School District Expenditures Funded by State Aid:
Salaries:

Administrative Personnel:
Superintendents or Directors $ 57,371,337 $ 60,838,179
Associate or Assistant Superintendents 15,973,410 15,748,806
Principals 151,512,900 149,204,582
Assistant Principals 109,714,411 104,068,265
Finance Officers 7,296,043 7,238,624

   Total Administrative Personnel 341,868,101 337,098,456

Teachers 3,725,436,456 3,610,918,550
Instructional Support Personnel - Certified 509,166,521 473,860,136
Psychologists 32,507,378 31,519,909
Teacher Assistants 340,909,872 334,807,421
Tutors and Non-Certified Instructors 16,858,582 16,817,299
Interpreters, Therapists, and Specialists 61,791,233 61,034,350
School Resource Officers and Monitors 21,036,221 20,099,921
Technical and Administrative Support Personnel 206,380,427 181,993,144
Substitute Pay 61,452,503 55,919,241
Drivers 165,167,692 161,589,869
Custodians 175,552,580 171,463,579
Skilled Tradesmen and Managers 63,429,244 62,034,805
Longevity Pay 24,492,982 23,130,894
Annual Leave Pay 38,740,066 39,625,025
Supplementary Pay 63,247,898 128,222,970
Short Term Disability Pay 5,838,984 6,008,661
Extra Duty Pay 27,918,354 25,205,669

Total Salaries 5,881,795,094 5,741,349,899

Employer-Provided Benefits:
Employer's Social Security Cost - Regular 425,010,241 415,960,081
Retirement Benefits 917,794,356 830,775,859
Insurance Benefits 718,552,185 689,071,388

Total Employer-Provided Benefits 2,061,356,782 1,935,807,328

Purchased Services:
Professional and Technical Services 167,065,277 165,069,162
Property Services 4,373,395 4,621,590
Transportation Services 33,470,987 30,542,814
Communications 9,313,582 6,796,438
Tuition 1,772,754 2,418,041
Dues and Fees 276,987 265,743
Insurance and Judgments 826,583 713,776

Total Purchased Services 217,099,565 210,427,564

Supplies and Materials:
School and Office Supplies 122,247,707 115,538,607
Operational Supplies 71,062,815 68,461,703
Food Supplies 236,037 236,577
Noncapitalized Equipment 58,229,308 41,755,746
Sales and Use Tax Refunds 170,859 58,018

Total Supplies and Materials 251,946,726 226,050,651

Capital Outlay:
Equipment and Computer Hardware 10,596,660 10,580,857
Vehicles 4,033,395 2,291,188

Total Capital Outlay 14,630,055 12,872,045

Expenditures to Other State Agencies 477,124 473,167

Total School District Expenditures Funded by State Aid (See Schedules D-4 and D-5) 8,427,305,346 8,126,980,654

North Carolina Department of Public Instruction
Supplementary Information
Schedule of Grants, State, and Federal Aid Paid to Schools
General Fund

     (With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2016)

2017 2016
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 Schedule D-3
Page 2 of 2

Federal Grants and Aid to School Districts:
Payments Under Federal Grant Programs (See Schedules D-4 and D-5) 852,411,055 847,649,386
Reimbursements for Meals Provided Under Federal Child Nutrition Program (See Schedules D-4 and D-5) 521,259,374 517,428,157
Reimbursements from Medicaid (See Schedules D-4 and D-5) 12,236,220 16,590,611

Total Federal Grants and Aid Paid to School Districts 1,385,906,649 1,381,668,154

Construction Projects Paid through Building Capital Fund (See Schedules D-4 and D-5) 91,028,169 106,654,488

Technology Support Paid through School Technology Fund (See Schedules D-4 and D-5) 36,337,622 20,583,936

Total Grants, State, and Federal Aid to School Districts (See Schedules D-4 and D-5) 9,940,577,786 9,635,887,232

Grants and Aid to Charter Schools:
Charter School Expenditures Funded by State Aid (See Schedules D-6 and D-7) 520,037,574 452,326,036
Payments Under Federal Grant Programs (See Schedules D-6 and D-7) 25,111,839 23,396,589
Reimbursements for Meals Provided Under Federal Child Nutrition Program (See Schedules D-6 and D-7) 10,872,604 9,279,719

Total Grants and Aid to Charter Schools (See Schedules D-6 and D-7) 556,022,017 485,002,344

Aid to Other Nonprofit Organizations for Programming 31,527,334 51,504,337

Total Grants, State, and Federal Aid Expenditures (See Exhibit A-2) $ 10,528,127,137 $ 10,172,393,913

2017 2016

     (With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2016)

North Carolina Department of Public Instruction
Supplementary Information
Schedule of Grants, State, and Federal Aid Paid to Schools
General Fund
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING  

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN  
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The State Board of Education 
and Management of the North Carolina Department of Public Instruction  

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the governmental fund and proprietary fund of the North Carolina Department 
of Public Instruction (Department), a department of the State of North Carolina, as of and for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Department’s basic financial statements, and have issued our 
report thereon dated April 9, 2018. 

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the North Carolina Department of Public 
Instruction are intended to present the financial position, changes in financial position and, 
where applicable, cash flows of only that portion of each major fund that is attributable to the 
transactions of the North Carolina Department of Public Instruction. They do not purport to, 
and do not, present fairly the financial position of the State of North Carolina as of  
June 30, 2017, the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.  

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the 
Department’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Department’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Department’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
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deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the Department’s financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during 
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Department’s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with 
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Department’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
Department’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose.  

 
Beth A. Wood, CPA 
State Auditor 

Raleigh, North Carolina 

April 9, 2018



 

This audit required 2,517 hours at an approximate cost of $259,251. 
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ORDERING INFORMATION 

COPIES OF THIS REPORT MAY BE OBTAINED BY CONTACTING: 

Office of the State Auditor 
State of North Carolina 

2 South Salisbury Street 
20601 Mail Service Center 

Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-0600 

Telephone: 919-807-7500 
Facsimile: 919-807-7647 

Internet: http://www.ncauditor.net 

To report alleged incidents of fraud, waste or abuse in state government contact the 
Office of the State Auditor Fraud Hotline: 1-800-730-8477 

or download our free app. 

 
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=net.ncauditor.ncauditor 

 
https://itunes.apple.com/us/app/nc-state-auditor-hotline/id567315745 

For additional information contact: 
Brad Young 

Director of External Affairs 
919-807-7513 

 

 

http://www.ncauditor.net/
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=net.ncauditor.ncauditor
https://itunes.apple.com/us/app/nc-state-auditor-hotline/id567315745
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